BCP

Council

Notice of Eastern BCP Planning Committee

Date: Thursday, 3 July 2025 at 10.00 am

Venue: HMS Phoebe, BCP Civic Centre, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Membership:

Chairman:
Clir P Hilliard

Vice Chairman:
Clir M Le Poidevin

ClIr J Clements Clir G Martin Clir T Slade
Clir D A Flagg Clir Dr F Rice Clir M Tarling
Clir M Gillett ClIr 3 Salmon Clir L Williams

All Members of the Eastern BCP Planning Committee are summoned to attend this meeting
to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below.

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6125

if you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Claire Johnston - 01202 096660 or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

GRAHAM FARRANT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DEBAT

25 June 2025

Available online and
on the Mod.gov app

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY



Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct
Councillors should act solely
Declaring interests at meetings in terms of the public

Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be found in interest
Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution. Integrity

Before the meeting, read the agenda and reports to see if the matters to be Councillors must avoid
discussed at the meeting concern your interests placing themselves under

any obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work. They
should not act or take
decisions in order to gain
financial or other material
benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.
They must declare and
resolve any interests and
relationships

Objectivity

Councillors must act and
take decisions impartially,
fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without
discrimination or bias

Accountability

Councillors are accountable
to the public for their
decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to
the scrutiny necessaryto
ensure this

Openness

Councillors should act and
take decisions in an open
and transparent manner.
Information should not be
withheld from the public
unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing

Honesty & Integrity

Councillors should act with
honesty and integrity and
should not place themselves

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)
(set outin Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
| have a DPI and cannot take part without finances or wellbeing of one of my Other
a dispensation Registerable Interests (ORIs)
(set out in Table 2)?

| have an ORI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close
associate?

| have a NRI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the

Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of
me, a relative or a close associate or any
of my ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a greater extent that
most people? And would a reasonable person
think my judgementis clouded?

| have an interest and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but I have no interest to disclose
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and how do they affect my
participation in the meeting?

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they affect you, your
participation in the meeting may call into question the decision arrived at on the
item.

Bias Test Predetermination Test in situations where their
In all the circumstances, would it honesty and integrity may
lead a fair minded and informed At the time of making the decision, be questioned
observertg ggnclude that there was did the decision maker have a closed Leadership
a real possibility or a real danger that mind?
the decision maker was biased? Councillors should exhibit
. 4 these principles in their own
) . : 2 behaviour. They should
If a councillor appears to be biased or to have predetermined their decision, actively promote and
they must NOT participate in the meeting. robustly support the
. . . L - principles and be willing to
For more information or advice please contact the Monitoring Officer challenge poor behaviour

(janie.berry@bcpcouncil.gov.uk) wherever it occurs




AGENDA

ltems to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Apologies

To receive any apologies for absence from Members.

Substitute Members

To receive information on any changes in the membership of the
Committee.

Note — When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the
front of this agenda should be used for notifications.

Declarations of Interests

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on
5 June 2025.

Public Issues

To receive any requests to speak on planning applications which the
Planning Committee is considering at this meeting.

The deadline for the submission of requests to speak is 10.00am on
Wednesday 2 July 2025 [10.00am of the working day before the meeting].
Requests should be submitted to Democratic Services using the contact
details on the front of this agenda.

Further information about how public speaking is managed at meetings is
contained in the Planning Committee Protocol for Public Speaking and
Statements, a copy of which is included with this agenda sheet and is also
published on the website on the following page:

https://[democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=613

Summary of speaking arrangements as follows:

Speaking at Planning Committee (in person or virtually):

e There will be a maximum combined time of five minutes to speak in
objection and up to two persons may speak within the five minutes.

11-18


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=613

e There will be a further maximum combined time of five minutes to speak in
support and up to two persons may speak within the five minutes.

¢ No speaker may speak for more than half this time (two and a half minutes)
UNLESS there are no other requests to speak received by the deadline OR
it is with the agreement of the other speaker.

Anyone who has registered to speak by the deadline may, as an alternative
to speaking/for use in default, submit a written statement to be read out on
their behalf. This must be provided to Democratic Services by 10.00am of
the working day before the meeting, must not exceed 450 words and will be
treated as amounting to two and a half minutes of speaking time.

Please refer to the full Protocol document for further guidance.

Note: The public speaking procedure is separate from and is not intended
to replicate or replace the procedure for submitting a written representation
on a planning application to the Planning Offices during the consultation
period.

Schedule of Planning Applications

To consider the planning applications as listed below.

See planning application reports circulated with the agenda, as updated by
the agenda addendum sheet to be published one working day before the
meeting.

Councillors are requested where possible to submit any technical
guestions on planning applications to the Case Officer at least 48
hours before the meeting to ensure this information can be provided
at the meeting.

The running order in which planning applications will be considered will be
as listed on this agenda sheet.

The Chair retains discretion to propose an amendment to the running order
at the meeting if it is considered expedient to do so.

Members will appreciate that the copy drawings attached to planning
application reports are reduced from the applicants’ original and detail, in
some cases, may be difficult to read. To search for planning applications,
please use the following link:

https://mww.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/planning -and-building-control/search-and-
comment-on-planning-applications

Councillors are advised that if they wish to refer to specific drawings or
plans which are not included in these papers, they should contact the Case
Officer at least 48 hours before the meeting to ensure that these can be
made available.

To view Local Plans, again, the following link will take you to the main



https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/search-and-comment-on-planning-applications
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/search-and-comment-on-planning-applications

webpage where you can click on a tile to view the local plan for that area.
The link is:

https://mww.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Planning -and-building-control/Planning-
policy/Current-Local-Plans/Current-Local-Plan.aspx

a) 31-33 Wharncliffe Road, Christchurch, BH23 5DB 19 - 66

Highcliffe and Walkford Ward
8/24/0623/FUL

Demolition of existing buildings and erection of two apartment blocks with
associated parking and landscaping

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Planning-and-building-control/Planning-policy/Current-Local-Plans/Current-Local-Plan.aspx
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Planning-and-building-control/Planning-policy/Current-Local-Plans/Current-Local-Plan.aspx

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

- 1-
BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL
EASTERN BCP PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held on 05 June 2025 at 10.00 am

Present:-
Clir P Hilliard — Chair
Clir M Le Poidevin — Vice-Chair

Present: Clir D A Flagg, Clir M Gillett, Clir G Martin, Clir Dr F Rice,
Clir 3 Salmon, Clir T Slade and ClIr L Williams

Also in Clir B Nanovo, Clir M Phipps (virtual)

attendance:

12. Apologies

Apologies were received from ClIr J Clements.

13. Substitute Members

There were no substitute members.

14. Declarations of Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

15. Confirmation of Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 May 2025 were confirmed as an
accurate record for the Chair to sign.

16. Public Issues

There were a number of requests to speak on planning applications on the
agenda as detailed below.

17. Schedule of Planning Applications

The Committee considered planning application reports, copies of which
had been circulated and which appear as Appendices A to B of these
minutes in the Minute Book. A Committee Addendum Sheet was published
on 4 June 2025 and appears as Appendix C to these minutes.

18. 25 River Way, Christchurch, BH23 200

Commons Ward

8/25/0017/COU



19.

—-2_
EASTERN BCP PLANNING COMMITTEE
05 June 2025

Retrospective planning application for a change in use from a C3 residential
garage to a mixed-use space. The proposed use includes a pole/aerial
fitness exercise studio, as well as personal use by the applicants for
activities ancillary to the residential use.

Public Representations
Objectors
++ Rita Rayner

Applicant/Supporters
< Mrs Saunders

Ward Councillors
% ClIr Margaret Phipps, objecting

RESOLVED to GRANT permission in accordance with the
recommendation set out in the officer’s report subject to power being
delegated to the Head of Planning (Operations), in consultation with
the Chair and Vice Chair to agree the final wording of two additional
conditions requested by the Committee as follows:

e Use of structure to be limited to Planning Use Class E (d) —
Indoor sport, recreation or fitness

e Should the business use cease to operate the use of the
structure will revert back to a purpose incidental to the
enjoyment of the dwellinghouse

Voting: For — 7, Against — 0, Abstain — 2

Southbourne  Crossroads Car Park, Southbourne Overcliff Drive,
Bournemouth BH6 3NH

East Southbourne and Tuckton Ward
7-2025-28119-C

Minor material amendment application to vary condition no .2 for internal
and external alterations to Blocks A-D, erection of a new cycle store for
Block A and re wording of conditions 4,5,7,8 and 9 (Application ref. 7-2021-
28119, original description - Erection of 4 blocks (total of 27 flats) with bin
and cycle stores and formation of wvehicular access and associated
undercroft car parking).

Public Representations
Objectors
+ None registered

Applicant/Supporters
s Chris Miell, on behalf of the applicant

8



.
EASTERN BCP PLANNING COMMITTEE
05 June 2025

Ward Councillors
«» ClIr Bernadette Nanovo

RESOLVED to GRANT permission in accordance with the
recommendation set out in the officer’s report subject to power being
delegated to the Head of Planning (Operations) to agree the final
wording of an additional condition requested by the Committee as

follows:

e Scheme for maintenance/retention of Living Wall on site
frontage and Brown Roof Block A for the lifespan of the
development to be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority

Voting: Unanimous

The meeting ended at 11.40 am




This page is intentionally left blank

10



! !gen!a ‘tersnch!edule 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE - PROTOCOL FOR SPEAKING /
STATEMENTS AT PLANNING COMMITTEE

1. Introduction

1.1 The following protocol facilitates opportunities for applicant(s), objector(s) and
supporter(s) to express their views on planning applications which are to be
considered at a Planning Committee meeting. It does not therefore relate to
any other item considered at Planning Committee in respect of which public
speaking/questions shall only be permitted at the discretion of the Chair.

1.2  This protocol is separate from and is not intended to replicate or replace the
procedure for submitting a written representation on a planning application to
the Council during the consultation period.

1.3 The email address for any person who wishes to register a request to
speak and / or submit a statement for the purposes of this protocol or to
correspond with Democratic Services on any aspect of this protocol is
democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

2. Order of presentation of an application

2.1 The running order in which planning applications are heard will usually follow
the order as appears on the agenda unless the Planning Committee otherwise
determines.

2.2 In considering each application the Committee will normally take contributions
in the following order:

a) presenting officer(s);
b) objector(s);
c) applicant(s) /supporter(s);

d) councillor who has called in an application (who is not a voting member of
the Planning Committee in relation to that application) / ward councillor(s);

e) questions and discussion by voting members of the Planning Committee,
which may include seeking points of clarification.

3. Guidance relating to the application of this protocol

3.1 The allocation of an opportunity to speak / provide a statement to be read out
at Planning Committee under this protocol is not intended as a guarantee of a
right to speak / have a statement read out.

3.2  The Chair has absolute discretion as to how this protocol shall be applied in
respect of any individual application so far as it relates to the conduct of the

1
11


mailto:democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

meeting and as provided for in this protocol including whether in any
circumstance it should be waived, added to or otherwise modified. This
discretion includes the opportunity to speak (or submit a statement), varying
the speaking time allowed and the number of speakers. In the event of any
uncertainty as to the interpretation or application of any part of this protocol a
determination by the Chair will be conclusive.

3.3 A failure to make a request to speak / submit a statement in accordance with
any one or more of the requirements of this protocol will normally result in the
request / submission of the statement not being treated as validly made and
therefore not accepted.

4. Electronic facilities relating to Planning Committee

4.1. All electronic broadcasting and recording of a Planning Committee meeting by
the Council and the provision of an opportunity to speak remotely at such a
meeting is dependent upon such matters being accessible, operational and
useable during the meeting. As a consequence, a meeting other than a wholly
virtual meeting may proceed, including consideration of all applications relating
to it, even if it cannot be electronically broadcast, recorded and/or any person
is unable to speak / be heard at the time when the opportunity to do so on an
application is made available.

5. Attending in person at a Planning Committee meeting / wholly
virtual meetings

5.1. Unless otherwise stated on the Council’'s website and/or the agenda Planning
Committee will be held as a physical (in person) meeting. A Planning
Committee meeting will only be held as a wholly virtual meeting during such
time as a decision has been taken by BCP Council that committee meetings of
the Council may be held in this way. In the event of there being a discretion as
to whether a Planning Committee meeting shall be held as a wholly virtual
meeting, then the Head of Planning in consultation with the Chair shall be able
to determine whether such a discretion should be applied.

6. Provisions for speaking at Planning Committee (whether in
person or remotely)

6.1. Any applicant, objector or supporter who wishes to speak at a Planning
Committee meeting must register a request to speak in writing with Democratic
Services at democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk by 10.00 am of the
working day before the meeting.

6.2. A person registering a request to speak must:

a) make clear as to the application(s) on which they wish to speak and
whether they support or oppose the application; and

b) provide contact details including a telephone number and/or email address
at which they can be reached / advised that they have been given an
opportunity to speak.


mailto:democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

6.3. There will be a maximum combined time of five minutes allowed for any
person(s) objecting to an application to speak. A further combined five minute
maximum will also be allowed for any supporter(s). Up to two people may
speak during each of these allotted times (the applicant(s) and any agent for
the applicant(s) will each count as separate speakers in support). No speaker
may speak for more than half this time (i.e. two and a half minutes) unless:

a) there is no other speaker who has also been allotted to speak for the
remainder of the five minutes allowed;

b) or the other allotted speaker fails to be present or is unable to be heard (in
the case of remote speaking), at the Planning Committee meeting at the
time when the opportunity to speak on the application is made available; or

c) the other allotted speaker expressly agrees to the speaker using more than
half of the total speaking time allowed.

6.4. If more than two people seek to register a wish to speak for either side, an
officer from Democratic Services may ask those seeking the opportunity to
speak to appoint up to two representatives to address the Planning Committee.
In the absence of agreement as to representatives, entitlement to speak will
normally be allocated in accordance with the order when a request was
received by Democratic Services. However, in the event of an applicant(s) and
/ or the agent of the applicant(s) wishing to speak in support of an application
such person(s) will be given the option to elect to speak in preference to any
other person registered to speak in support.

6.5. A person registered to speak may appoint a different person to speak on their
behalf. The person registered to speak should normally notify Democratic
Services of this appointment prior to the time that is made available to speak
on the application.

6.6. A person may at any time withdraw their request to speak by notifying
Democratic Services by email or in person on the day of that meeting.
However, where such a withdrawal is made after the deadline date for receipt
of requests then the available slot will not be made available for a new speaker.
In cases where more than two requests to speak within the allocated five
minutes were received by the deadline, Democratic Services will, where
practicable, reallocate the slot in date receipt order.

6.7. During consideration of a planning application at a Planning Committee
meeting, no question should be put or comment made to any councillor sitting
on the Planning Committee by any applicant, objector or supporter whether as
part of a speech or otherwise.



7.1,

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.1.

10.

10.1.

Questions to person speaking under this protocol

Questions will not normally be asked of any person who has been given the
opportunity to speak for the purpose of this Protocol. However, the Chair at
their absolute discretion may raise points of clarification.

Speaking as a ward councillor or other BCP councillor
(whether in person or remotely)

Any ward councillor shall usually be afforded an opportunity to speak on an
application at the Planning Committee meeting at which it is considered. Every
ward councillor who is given the opportunity to speak will have up to five
minutes each.

At the discretion of the Chair, any other councillor of BCP Council not sitting as
a voting member of the Planning Committee may also be given the opportunity
to speak on an application being considered at Planning Committee. Every
such councillor will have up to five minutes each.

Any member of the Planning Committee who has exercised their call in powers
to bring an application to the Planning Committee for decision should not vote
on that item but subject to any requirements of the Member Code of Conduct,
may have or, at the discretion of the Chair, be given the opportunity to speak in
connection with it as a ward councillor or otherwise in accordance with the
speaking provisions of this protocol. Such a member will usually be invited after
speaking to move themselves from the area where voting members of the
Planning Committee are sitting and may be requested to leave the room until
consideration of that application has been concluded.

Speaking as a Parish or Town Council representative
(whether in person or remotely)

A Parish or Town Council representative who wishes to speak as a
representative of that Parish or Town Council must register as an objector or
supporter and the same provisions for speaking as apply to any other objector
or supporter applies to them. This applies even if that representative is also a
councillor of BCP Council.

Content of speeches (whether in person or remotely) and use
of supporting material

Speaking must be done in the form of an oral representation. This should only
refer to planning related issues as these are the only matters the Planning
Committee can consider when making decisions on planning applications.
Speakers should normally direct their points to reinforcing or amplifying
planning representations already made to the Council in writing in relation to
the application being considered. Guidance on what constitutes planning
considerations is included as part of this protocol. Speakers must take care to
avoid saying anything that might be libellous, slanderous, otherwise abusive to

4
14




any person or group, including the applicant, any officer or councillor or might
result in the disclosure of any personal information for which express consent
has not been given.

10.2. A speaker who wishes to provide or rely on any photograph, illustration or other
visual material when speaking (in person or remotely) must submit this to
Democratic Services by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. All
such material must be in an electronic format to be agreed by Democratic
Services and will usually be displayed on the speaker’s behalf by the presenting
officer. The maximum number of slides to be displayed must not exceed five.
Material provided after this time or in a format not agreed will not be accepted.
The circulation or display of hard copies of such material at the Planning
Committee meeting itself will normally not be allowed. In the interests of
fairness, any material to be displayed must have already been submitted to and
received by the Council as part of a representation/submission in relation to the
application by the date of agenda publication for that Planning Committee
meeting.

10.3. The ability to display material on screen is wholly dependent upon the
availability and operation of suitable electronic equipment at the time of the
Planning Committee meeting and cannot be guaranteed. Every person making
a speech should therefore ensure that it is not dependent on such information
being displayed.

11. Remote speaking at Planning Committee

11.1. In circumstances where the Council has put in place electronic facilities which
enable a member of the public to be able to speak remotely to a Planning
Committee meeting, a person may request the opportunity to speak remotely
via those electronic facilities using their own equipment. In circumstances other
than a wholly virtual meeting this would be as an alternative to attending the
meeting in person. The provisions of this protocol relating to speaking at
Planning Committee shall, unless the context otherwise necessitates, equally
apply to remote speaking.

11.2. The opportunity to speak remotely is undertaken at a person’s own risk on the
understanding that should any technical issues affect their ability to participate
remotely the meeting may still proceed to hear the item on which they wish to
speak without their participation.

11.3. A person attending to speak remotely may at any time be required by the Chair
or the Democratic Services Officer to leave any electronic facility that may be
provided.

12. Non-attendance / inability to be heard at Planning Committee

12.1. ltis solely the responsibility of a person who has been given an opportunity to
speak on an application at a Planning Committee meeting (whether in person
or remotely) to ensure that they are present for that meeting at the time when
an opportunity to speak is made available to them.

12.2. A failure / inability by any person to attend and speak in person or remotely at
a Planning Committee meeting at the time made available for that person to
speak on an application will normally be deemed a withdrawal of their wish to



speak on that application. This will not therefore usually be regarded as a
reason of itself to defer or prevent an application from being heard.

12.3. This protocol includes provisions enabling the opportunity to provide a
statement as an alternative to speaking in person / as a default option in the
event of a person being unable to speak at the appropriate meeting time.

13. Submission of statement as an alternative to speaking / for
use in default

13.1. A person (including a councillor of BCP Council) who has registered to speak,
may submit a statement to be read out on their behalf as an alternative to
speaking at a Planning Committee meeting (whether in person or remotely).

13.2. Further, any person speaking on an application at Planning Committee may, at
their discretion, additionally submit a statement which can be read out as
provided for in this protocol in the event of not being able to attend and speak
in person or remotely at the time when an opportunity is made available for that
person to speak on the application. The person should identify that this is the
purpose of the statement.

14. Provisions relating to a statement
14.1 Any statement submitted for the purpose of this protocol:

a) must not exceed 450 words in total unless the statement is provided by a
ward councillor or any other councillor who is not voting on the application
under consideration in which case the statement may consist of up to 900
words;

b) must have been received by Democratic Services by 10.00am of the
working day before the meeting by emailing
democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

c) when submitted by a member of the public (as opposed to a councillor of
BCP Council), will be treated as amounting to two and a half minutes of
the total time allotted for speaking notwithstanding how long it does in fact
take to read out;

d) must not normally be modified once the deadline time and date for receipt
of the statement by Democratic Services has passed unless such
modification is requested by an officer from Democratic Services; and

e) will normally be read out aloud by an officer from Democratic Services
having regard to the order of presentation identified in this protocol.

14.2 A person who has been given the right to speak and who has submitted a
statement in accordance with this protocol may at any time withdraw that
statement prior to it being read out by giving notice to Democratic Services.
Where such withdrawal occurs after the deadline date for registering a
request to speak has passed, then a further opportunity for a statement to be
submitted will not be made available. If the statement that has been
withdrawn was submitted as an alternative to speaking, then if the person

6
16


mailto:democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

withdrawing the statement wishes instead to exercise their opportunity to
speak in person they should notify Democratic Services on or before the time
of withdrawing the statement.

15. Assessment of information / documentation / statement

15.1. BCP Council reserves the right to check any statement and any information /
documentation (including any photograph, illustration or other visual material)
provided to it for use at a Planning Committee meeting and to prevent the use
of such information / documentation in whole or part, in particular, if it:

a) is considered to contain information of a kind that might be libellous,
slanderous, abusive to any party including an applicant or might result in
the disclosure of any personal information for which express consent has
not been given; and / or

b) is identified as having anything on it that is considered could be an
electronic virus, malware or similar.

15.2 The Head of Planning in consultation with the Chair shall have the absolute
discretion to determine whether any such statement / information /
documentation should not be used / read out in whole or part. If
circumstances reasonably permit, Democratic Services may seek to request a
person modify such statement / information / documentation to address any
issue identified.

16. Guidance on what amounts to a material planning
consideration

16.1. As at the date of adoption of this protocol, the National Planning Portal provides
the following guidance on material planning considerations:

“A material consideration is a matter that should be taken into account in
deciding a planning application or on an appeal against a planning decision.
Material considerations can include (but are not limited to):

Overlooking/loss of privacy

Loss of light or overshadowing

Parking

Highway safety

Traffic

Noise

Effect on listed building and conservation area
Layout and density of building

Design, appearance and materials
Government policy

Disabled persons' access

Proposals in the Development Plan

Previous planning decisions (including appeal decisions)
Nature conservation



However, issues such as loss of view, or negative effect on the value of
properties are not material considerations.”

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/fags/fag/4/what are material considerations
#:~text=A%20material%20consideration%20is%20a,L. 0ss%200f%20light%20
or%20overshadowing

Note
For the purpose of this protocol:

(a) reference to the “Chair” means the Chair of Planning Committee and shall
include the Vice Chair of Planning Committee if the Chair is at any time
unavailable or absent and the person presiding at the meeting of a Planning
Committee at any time that both the Chair and Vice Chair of Planning
Committee are unavailable or absent;

(b) reference to the Head of Planning includes any officer nominated by them for
the purposes of this protocol and if at any time the Head of Planning in
unavailable, absent or the post is vacant / ceases to exist, then the
Development Management Manager or if also unavailable / absent or that post
is vacant/no longer exists then the next most senior officer in the development
management team (or any of them if more than one) who is first contactable;

(c) reference to ‘ward councillor means a councillor in whose ward the application
being considered at a meeting of Planning Committee is situated in whole or
part and who is not a voting member of the Planning Committee in respect of
the application being considered; and

(d) a “wholly virtual meeting” is a Planning Committee meeting where no one
including officers and councillors physically attend the meeting; however, a
meeting will not be held as a “wholly virtual meeting” unless legislation permits

Adopted by the Planning Committee on 17.11.22 and updated on 20.7.23


https://www.planningportal.co.uk/faqs/faq/4/what_are_material_considerations#:%7E:text=A%20material%20consideration%20is%20a,Loss%20of%20light%20or%20overshadowing
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/faqs/faq/4/what_are_material_considerations#:%7E:text=A%20material%20consideration%20is%20a,Loss%20of%20light%20or%20overshadowing
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/faqs/faq/4/what_are_material_considerations#:%7E:text=A%20material%20consideration%20is%20a,Loss%20of%20light%20or%20overshadowing

Committee Report

Agenda ltem 7

BCP

Council

Application Address

31-33 Wharncliffe Road, Christchurch, BH23 5DB

Proposal

Demolition of existing buildings and erection of two apartment
blocks with associated parking and landscaping

Application Number

8/24/0623/FUL

Applicant

Burry and Knight Ltd

Agent

Chapman Lily Planning Ltd

Ward and Ward Member(s)

Highcliffe & Walkford — Councillor Andy Martin and Councillor
David Martin

Report Status

Public

Meeting Date

39 July 2025

Summary of
Recommendation

Grant in accordance with the details set out below for the
reasons as setout in the report

Reason for Referral to
Planning Committee

The Head of Planning considers that there are material planning
considerations that warrant the application being considered by
the Planning Committee.

Case Officer Peter Walters
Is the proposal EIA No
Development?
Description of Proposal
1. The applicant proposes to erect a pair of three storey apartment blocks,

containing a total of 19 units, with a mix of 1no. one bedroom unit, 11no. two
bedroom units and 7no. three bedroom units. The proposed development
includes the provision of 37 parking spaces (including 4 visitor spaces) and a
cycle store to accommodate 46 bicycles. The proposal also includes

associated landscaping.

Description of Site and Surroundings

2. The area is predominantly residential, although to the south is the coast and
Highcliffe Beach and to the east (beyond public open space) is Highcliffe Top

Page 1 of 24

19




Car Park. The area has traditionally been charactered by moderate sized
detached dwellings setin gardens. Buildings are generally set back from the
road.

Recent development has seen the character of the area beginto change, with
blocks of apartments becoming more prevalent, particularly along the
southern side of Wharncliffe Road. Building heights are largely 2-3 storey with
a range of architectural styles and materials palette being employed. The
majority of properties have low level boundary walls running along the front
boundary.

The application site comprises of two separate plots each containing large
detached houses. The houses are two storey in height and of mid twentieth
century construction. Both are set back from the street and feature large
gardens to the rear. In the north western corner of 33 Wharncliffe Road is a
mature Monterey Pine (T2).

Relevant Planning History:

5.

7.

8/23/0917/PAM -Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a flatted
development. 21 residential units. Pre-application advice — scheme unlikely to
be supported due to the bulk and mass of a single block of flats.

8/23/0149/FUL — Demolition of existing dwellings and erect a block of 23
apartments (with basement), associated parking and landscaping. Refused
due to the impact on scale, height, layout and spread of built form. Also
refused due to loss of TPO trees, lack of provision of affordable housing,
failure to provide suitable cycle parking, impact on neighbouring amenity, the
inclusion of single aspect flats and the failure to provide a contribution to
heathlands mitigation.

Constraints

Within 5km of SSSI heathlands

Within 13.8km of New Forest SAC, SPA and Ramsar
Approximately 130m from the coast

Site includes trees the subject of tree preservation orders

Public Sector Equalities Duty

8.

In accordance with section 149 Equality Act 2010, in considering this proposal
due regard has been had to the need to —

° eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;

° advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Page 2 of 24

20



Other relevant duties

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

For the purposes of this application in accordance with regulation 9(3) of the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) (“the
Habitat Regulations) appropriate regard has been had to the relevant
Directives (as defined in the Habitats Regulations) in so far as they may be
affected by the determination.

In accordance with section 40 Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006, in considering this application, regard has been had, so far as is
consistent with the proper exercise of this function, to the purpose of
conserving biodiversity.

For the purposes of this application, in accordance with section 2 Self-build
and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015, regard has been had to the register that
the Council maintains of individuals and associations of individuals who are
seeking to acquire serviced plots in the Council’'s area for their own self-build
and custom housebuilding.

For the purposes of this application, in accordance with section 17 Crime and
Disorder Act 1998, due regard has been had to, including the need to do all
that can reasonably be done to prevent, (a) crime and disorder inits area
(including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting the local
environment); (b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its
area; and (c) re-offending in its area.

Where reference is included a report to the Self-build and Custom
Housebuilding Act 2015 then there should be incorporated in the assessment
section at least a brief explanation that addresses this issue. E.g. that the
scheme is not considered to be suitable for self-build / custom housebuilding -
perhaps because it is a proposal for a block of flats and doesn’t provide offer
for self-build / custom housing provision / whether the current demand
identified in the register for the area is being met. Where demand is not being
met, officers should in particular aim to briefly reflect the outcome of
discussion with the applicant on incorporating some self-build / custom
housing in a proposal and any consequences to the overall planning
assessment arising from this.

Consultations

14.

15.

Cliff Stability — no objection

e No objection as surface water drainage to be discharged to public
sewer therefore it will not adversely impact cliff stability.

e Details of the car park basement will need to be provided along with
details of proposed temporary works which can be achieved by
planning condition.

e No concerns regarding the structure impacting cliff stability.

Waste Management — object

Page 3 of 24

21



Bin store is a suitable size to accommodate number of containers
required.

Bin store is not within 10m of the highway to facilitate collection

Bin store access door should be at least 1.5m wide to facilitate
collection

Recommend that a separate bulky goods storage space is provided to
prevent the blocking of bins with large items which need to be
disposed of when residents vacate or move in

Paths to containers and communal bin store should be 1.8m-2m wide
and free from inclines of more than 1:12

Dropped kerb required to allow 4 wheeled containers to travel to back
of collection vehicle

16. Highcliffe and Walkford Parish Council — object

Consider that little has changed since previous application in terms of
appearance, design, safety, noise levels

Not clear that cliff stability is acceptable (Officer note — please see
response from cliff stability team who raise no objection)
Concerns re underground parking and emergency access (Officer
note — Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue have not objected —
but advised that compliance with Building Regulations will be
required).

17. Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue - comments

Proposal will need to comply with Building Regulations

18. Natural England - object

Will need to secure mitigation for heathlands

Phosphates need to be mitigated (Officer note: a scheme is now in
place for this, overcoming the objection raised by Natural
England)

19. Highways Authority — no objection

Vehicular access is acceptable

Use of separate car and cycle lifts is welcomed — 2 cycle lifts welcomed
Number of cycle parking spaces considered acceptable

Electrical charging provided as well as bike pumps and repair station
which is welcomed to ensure bikes can be maintained

EV charging is indicated for half the spaces which is SPD compliant
Planning conditions will be required.

20. Dorset Police — no objection

Unsure what access control will be used to secure gates into the
central courtyard

Recommend higher security doors than required by Building
Regulations

Recommend defensive planting or fencing to secure areas to the rear
of the property and a key lockable throw bolt that can be operated from
either side of the gate

Page 4 of 24

22



21.

22.

23.

24,

e Access points to the building still need security, particularly access from
the emergency stairs.

Biodiversity — comments
e Further details will be required in relation to bat and swift bricks/boxes
to be supplied. These can be dealt with by means of a planning
condition

Trees and Landscaping — comments

e Welcomes retention of three mature pines situated at the front of the
site and welcomes the proposed tree planting and notes the species
choice of Stone Pine.

e Some concerns regarding encroachment into root protection area
(RPA) of Monterey Pine (T2) by the proposed driveway and the amount
of soft surfacing lost at the front.

e The confirmation of siting of soakaways services and drainage should
be provided prior to determination (Officer note: no soakaway is
proposed).

e Details of the works for pruning for T2 is required due to the low
hanging canopy

Urban Design — objection

e Some objections to amendments submitted in relation to roof form
(Officer note: the applicant has submitted amendments that have
made the changes suggested by the Urban Design Officer — this
is considered by the case officer to overcome the Urban Design
objections)

e Suggested changes to the form of Block B

e Suggested changes to the materials palette

Lead Local Flood Authority — no objection
e The applicant has proposed two drainage systems forward. The LLFA
has a preference for the gravity fed system
e However itis acknowledged that a pump system is a viable alternative
if required
e No objection subject to planning conditions

Representations

25.

9 objections have been received to the proposal, with one letter of support.

The matters raised are as follows:

Loss of family homes for apartment blocks
Further strain on local services

Beyond building line at the rear

Density too high

Page 5 of 24

23



[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
Key Issue(s)
26.
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
27.

Impact on neighbouring residents with regards to light and visual
amenity/ outlook and create overlooking

Underground car park requires excavation of the cliff

Lift access creates noise problems for neighbours and a safety hazard
for residents and other road users

Impact on biodiversity

Concerns regarding the suitability of the access point

Impact of the construction process on neighbouring amenity

Lack of affordable housing

Safety of access to car park

Safety of premises if fire breaks out

Impact of phosphates

Concerns flats will become second homes — impact on vitality of the
area

The key issue(s) involved with this proposal are:

Principle of development

Impact on the character and appearance of the area
Impact on neighbouring amenity
Amenity of future occupiers
Impact on cliff stability

Provision of affordable housing
Impact on highway safety
Impact on protected trees
Flooding and Drainage

Impact on protected sites
Waste Collection

Biodiversity

Biodiversity Net Gain

Tilted Balance

These issues will be considered along with other matters relevant to this
proposal below.

Policy context

28.

Local documents:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that
planning applications must be determined in accordance with the
development plan for an area, except where material considerations indicate
otherwise. The development plan in this case comprises the Christchurch and
East Dorset Local Plan (2014) and the Highcliffe and Walkford Neighbourhood
Plan (2023):

Page 6 of 24

24



29.

Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014):
e KS1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
e KS11 Transport and Development
e KS12 Parking Provision
ME1 Safeguarding Biodiversity and Geodiversity
ME2 Protection of Dorset Heathlands
MEG6 Flood Management, Mitigation and Defence
HE2 Design of New Development
LN1 Size and type
LN2 Design, Layout and Density of New Development
LN3 Provision of affordable housing

Highcliffe and Walkford Neighbourhood Plan (2023):
e HWNPS8 Parking Standards
¢ HWNP10 Housing Design for Practical Living
e HWNP11 Retaining and Reinforcing Local Character

National Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF” / “Framework”)
Including in particular the following:
Section 2 — Achieving Sustainable Development

Paragraph 11 —
“Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable
development.

For decision-taking this means:

(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date
development plan without delay; or

(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date,
granting permission unless:

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a strong reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole, having particular regard to key policies for directing
development to sustainable locations, making effective use of land, securing
well-designed places and providing affordable homes, individually or in
combination.”

Planning Assessment

Presumption in favour of sustainable development

30.

At the heart of the NPPF is the presumption in favour of sustainable
development. NPPF paragraph 11 states that in the case of decision making,

Page 7 of 24

25



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

the presumption in favour of sustainable development means that where there
are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out of date, planning permission
should be granted unless policies in the Framework that protect areas of
assets of particular importance provide a clear reason for refusing the
development proposals or any adverse impacts of granting permission would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against
the policies inthe Framework taken as a whole.

Footnote 8 of paragraph 11 provides that inthe case of applications involving

the provision of housing, relevant policies are out of date if the local planning

authority is (i) unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing
sites or (ii) where the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) result is less than 75% of

the housing requirement over the previous three years.

The NPPF (2024) paragraph 78 requires local planning authorities to identify
and update a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide a
minimum of five years’ worth of housing. Paragraph 78 goes on to state that
the supply should be demonstrated against either the housing requirement set
out in adopted strategic policies, or against the local housing need where the
strategic policies are more than five years old. Where the Housing Delivery
Test indicates delivery has fallen below the local planning authority’s housing
requirement over the previous three years, a buffer should be included as set
out in paragraph 79 of the NPPF.

At 1 April 2024 BCP Council had a housing land supply of 2.1 years against a
5-year housing requirement that includes a 20% buffer. For the purposes of
paragraph 11 of the NPPF, itis therefore appropriate to regard relevant
housing policies as out of date as the local planning authority is unable to
demonstrate a five-year supply of homes.

In this instance, the scheme would provide 19 additional dwellings that would
contribute towards the Council’'s housing delivery target. Overall, there is no
objection to the principle of the proposed development, subject to its
compliance with the adopted local policies. This is assessed below.

For this planning application the benefits provided from the supply of new
homes are considered to carry significant weight in the planning balance.

Principle of Development

36.

The site is situated within the settlement boundary of Highcliffe. This is
identified in policy KS2 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014)
as being a District Centre, the second highest category in the hierarchy which
is considered to be suitable for “smaller scale residential development within
the existing urban areas.” Officers consider that the proposal for an additional
19 residential units is compliant with the policy categorisation. Therefore, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable in principle.

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

Page 8 of 24

26



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

The area is characterised by a mixture of residential development. Historic
Aerial photography indicates that the area historically was largely
characterised by predominantly detached dwellinghouses (with the exception
of Marina Court, which are two 4 storey blocks of flats to the west of the site).
However, in the last 10 years the character of the area has changed
considerably, with the replacement of many of the dwellinghouses with blocks
of flats. These are particularly prevalent on the southern side of Wharncliffe
Road. As such, the character is considered to have changed to the extent that
further blocks of flats are considered to be acceptable.

The submission of this application follows the refusal of a scheme to erect one
much larger block of flats which was considered to have a harmful impact
upon the character and appearance of the area. The proposed development
seeks to address some of the concerns raised previously. The revised
proposal is for the erection of two blocks of flats, featuring a central courtyard.
The footprint of each of the blocks is comparable to neighbouring properties.
In this respect, this design iteration is considered to be more appropriate and
is considered to be acceptable in this respect.

The blocks are each three storeys in height, featuring a combination of
pitched and flat roof elements. The scale of the buildings is in keeping with
other buildings inthe area, notably the blocks of flats to the west of the
application site. The proposed scale is therefore considered to be not
incongruous in the context of the local area. The form of the buildings in the
area vary, with a mix of traditional building forms including dual pitched roofs,
mid twentieth century, flat roof blocks of flats and contemporary buildings with
gently mono pitched roofs. The proposed buildings are considered to
complement the existing street scene in this respect.

The proposed materials palette includes the use of buff brick bases with a
mixture of render, wood and light grey metal effect cladding. This has been
amended from the initial submission which included the use of green which
was amended following concerns raised by the Council's Urban Design
Officer. The surrounding area features a variety of materials and therefore
following the amendments provided, the proposed materials are considered to
be acceptable. The proposed development employs large amounts of
fenestration, including on the gable ends on the south elevations. This isin
keeping with other modern developments in the area and would not be
incongruous with the area.

Concerns were previously raised regarding the single aspect nature of some
of the flats in the previous scheme. The separation of one unit into two has
allowed for a layout that ensures that all accommodation has at least two
outlooks. While itis acknowledged that some of the outlooks will be into the
courtyard and will not allow for significant outlooks, it will increase light and
ventilation into the flats and as such is considered to be acceptable in this
respect.

Page 9 of 24

27



42.

43.

44.

The central courtyard will provide the entrance to each block of the flats and
will be secured by a security gate. The Police Liaison has advised that there is
a potential risk to safety and for crime to occur if the security of the gate is not
sufficient. Officers therefore consider that it would be appropriate to condition
details of the gates to be provided to ensure that this is the case.

The area is noted for large amenity space to the rear of the properties. While it
is noted that some of the amenity space will be lost as a result of the
increased size, it nonetheless will retain a significant amount of amenity space
for use by future occupiers. A landscaping scheme has been provided which
shows this, as well as landscaping to be provided around the development.
This is considered to be acceptable.

Taking account of the above, the proposals are considered to be acceptable
in terms of their impact upon the character and appearance of the area and

will comply with policies HE2 and LN2 of the Christchurch and East Dorset

Local Plan (2014).

Impact on neighbouring amenity

45.

46.

47.

48.

The proposed development is situated in close proximity to neighbouring
properties to the east and west of the development. As such, there are limited
windows on the east elevation of Block A and the west elevation of Block B.
Nearly all the windows on each elevation above the ground floor are obscurely
glazed in order to protect the privacy of the neighbouring residents. It is noted
that the window serving bedroom 2 in apartment 9 (Block B) is not obscurely
glazed as itis the only window serving this room. However, this window is set
back into the building. It is noted that most of the windows on the
neighbouring property 29 are also obscurely glazed with the exception of one
window also serving a bedroom. The two windows are considered to be
obscurely angled and therefore there is not considered to be overlooking
between the properties.

The proposal includes balconies on both the north and south elevations. The
balconies on the north elevation are facing Wharncliffe Road. While they will
allow some overlooking into the front amenity space of the neighbouring
properties on the east and west this relationship is considered to be
acceptable given that there is overlooking from Wharncliffe Road.

Balconies are also proposed to the southern (rear) elevation. It is considered
that there is a greater potential for harmful overlooking from these balconies
into the private amenity space of the neighbouring residents. The applicant
proposes to erect privacy screens to a height of 1.8m above the floor level.
This is considered to be an acceptable solution in order to provide adequate
privacy for the neighbouring residents. A planning condition will be applied in
order to ensure that this is achieved.

The proposed development will be a similar height to 29 Wharncliffe Road and

to 35 Wharncliffe Road. As such, the proposed development will not be
overbearing on the neighbouring properties.

Page 10 of 24

28



49.

50.

There will be a degree of loss of sunlight to the window serving two bedrooms
of 29 Wharncliffe Road. However, given the altering character of the area it is
accepted that the replacement of larger apartment blocks will have a degree
of impact on neighbouring residents. It is noted that the affected flats (Units 1
and 4) in 29 Wharncliffe Road is treble aspect, and therefore, the loss of light
to this flat in particular is considered to be acceptable. Officers note that some
of the neighbouring residents have referenced that the rear building line of the
proposed blocks projects beyond that of the existing buildings by
approximately 4.5m. The applicant has demonstrated on the plans that the
sunlight paths to the neighbouring properties will be retained (including
accounting for the position of the balconies). As such, officers are satisfied
that the proposal will not have a harmful impact on the amenity of the
neighbouring residents in this respect.

Taking the above into account officers consider that the impact of the proposal
on neighbouring residents is considered to be acceptable and complies with
Policy HE2 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Amenity of future occupiers

51.

52.

53.

The proposal includes 19 flats, ranging between 1 bed 2 person to 3 bed 2
person accommodation. All the proposed flats exceed the minimal space
standards set out in the National Technical Guidance. In this respect, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable. The proposed development will
provide amenity space for the residents of the flats, with balconies for the flats
from the first floor upwards. The ground floor flat will also have their own
terraces. Beyond this, amenity space will be retained to the rear of the site for
the use of the residents. This is considered to be acceptable.

The layout of the two buildings has been designed so that there is no
overlooking between the windows of the flats looking at each other in the
courtyard. As discussed above, the gates providing access to the central
courtyard will need to have adequate security measures to protect the amenity
of the future occupiers. In addition, details will need to be provided of
boundary treatment at either side of the buildings to prevent unauthorised
access to the rear garden. This will be dealt with by means of planning
conditions.

Taking the above into account, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in
terms of the amenity for future occupiers and complies with Policies HE2 and
LN2 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Impact on cliff stability

54.

The rear of the site is situated approximately 19m from the edge of the clifftop.
The basement of the building (which projects further than the above ground
footprint) would be approximately 43m from the cliff top. Given the proximity of
the site to the cliff and also given that the proposal includes the excavation of

Page 11 of 24

29



55.

56.

57.

land to provide a basement, the Council’s Cliff Stability Team have been
consulted.

They are satisfied that the construction of the above ground structure will not
have a harmful impact on the stability of the cliff. It is noted that there could be
a degree of impact from the basement however subject to a condition
requiring details of the construction of the basement to be provided this is
considered to be acceptable.

It is noted that the applicant proposes to remove surface water runoff from the
site by means of attenuation and discharge into the sewer, as opposed to by
using a soakaway. As such, the drainage of the scheme is not considered to
be likely to undermine the stability of the cliff.

Taking the above into account, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in
terms of the impact on the stability of the cliff and complies with Policy HE2 of
the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Provision of affordable housing

58.

The proposal does not include provision for any affordable housing. The
applicant has provided a viability assessment setting out that the proposed
development will not be viable with the provision of affordable housing. The
Council have had the viability assessed independently and the conclusion of
the assessment is that the proposal would not be viable to provide affordable
housing. The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in this regard
and complies with Policy LN3 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan
(2014).

Impact on highway safety

59.

60.

Vehicular access to the site will be provided from the north eastern corner of
the site, from Wharncliffe Road. The access will lead to two car lifts to access
the basement car park, with a separate lift for cycle parking. The lifts
themselves are set back from the entrance to the site sufficiently to ensure
that waiting cars are clear of the public highway. The use of separate lifts for
cycles creates a safer environment for cycle users.

The cycle parking to be provided includes 44 spaces for residents and 2
visitor spaces. This is compliant with Table 9 — C3 Flats of the Council's
Parking SPD and is therefore considered to be acceptable. In addition, the
applicant proposes 2 mobility parking spaces and 4 visitor cycle bays which is
also welcomed. In addition, the cycle store will include electrical charging as
well as bike pumps and a repair station to ensure bikes can be maintained.
This encourages sustainable modes of transport. The layout of the cycle park
is considered to be appropriate, using Sheffield stands. Two cycle lifts are
proposed which is welcomed as an alternative is provided if one requires
servicing or repairs.

Page 12 of 24

30



61.

62.

63.

The proposal includes parking for 26 resident vehicles, and 5 visitor spaces.
This is compliant with the Parking SPD. Electric vehicle charging is indicated
for half of the residential car parking spaces and this is also SPD compliant.
As a result of the above the Local Highways Authority (LHA) has no objection
to the proposal, subject to planning conditions relating to the provision of a
construction management plan, the construction of visibility splays, the
provision of the cycle and car parking and the closure of the existing access.

The LHA had also recommended the inclusion of a planning condition related
to the provision of EV charging points, however since their comments were
received, guidance has been updated and this will now be covered by
Building Regulations.

Taking into account the above the proposal is considered to be compliant with
the BCP Parking SPD and policy KS12 of the Christchurch and East Dorset
Local Plan (2014) and have an acceptable impact upon highway safety.

Impact on protected trees

64.

65.

There are three protected trees situated at the front of the site. In addition to
being protected they are considered have amenity value and contribute to the
character of the area. The applicant intends to retain the trees which is
welcomed. The Arboricultural Officer has advised that the details of the
proposed services and drainage should be provided prior to approval of the
application. The applicant has done so and officers note that one of the
sewers will cross one of the root protection areas. The drainage strategy
indicates that this area should be dug by hand, however, officers consider that
itis necessary to condition that a further detailed strategy should be provided
prior to the commencement of the development in order to ensure that the
trees are protected during the construction of the drainage system.

In addition, some concerns have been raised regarding the amount of pruning
that will be required to tree T2. Officers consider that this should be detailed in
the strategy submitted by condition. Subject to these conditions, officers are
satisfied that the proposal will be acceptable in terms of protecting the trees
and the proposal is considered to be compliant with Policy ME1 of the
Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Flooding and Drainage

66.

67.

The site is situated in Flood Risk Zone 1 and is therefore acceptable in this
regard. Given the proximity of the site to the cliff edge, itis not appropriate to
deal with surface water run off by means of a soakaway. The applicant is
proposing an attenuation system to the public sewer, which is considered to
have the capacity to accommodate this. The preference would be for this to
be gravity fed, as set out in National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).

The applicant has provided two proposed systems, one is gravity fed, while
the other relies on a pump. The Lead Local Flood Authority is satisfied that
solutions not requiring a pump are being explored in the first instance (in line

Page 13 of 24

31



68.

with the NPPG), however accept that if this is not achievable a pumped
system would be an acceptable alternative. They have recommended
planning conditions requiring the final designto be submitted to the Council
and approved.

Officers consider that subject to the suggested planning conditions, the
proposal will be acceptable in terms of flooding and drainage and is compliant
with Policy MEG6 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Impact on protected sites

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

The site is within 5km of a designated Dorset Heathlands SPA (Special
Protection Area) and Ramsar Site, and part of the Dorset Heaths candidate
SAC (Special Area of Conservation). Working in collaboration with Dorset
Council and with advice from Natural England, BCP Council has adopted the
Dorset Heathlands Planning Framework 2020 — 2025 Supplementary
Planning Document, the purpose of which is to set out the approach to avoid
or mitigate harm to these protected sites. In this instance, itis considered that
the proposal is likely to have a significant effect on the Dorset Heathlands;
however, having undertaken an appropriate assessment it is believed that the
integrity of these sites can be maintained provided appropriate mitigation is
secured. In this case, a financial contribution of £5,592 plus an administration
fee of £279 is considered necessary for the purposes of such mitigation; such
contribution to be secured by way of an appropriate legal agreement.

The application site is within the catchment of the Christchurch Waste Water
Recycling Facility which discharges enriches water into the River Avon which
is designated as a Special Area of Conservation under the Habitat
Regulations 2017 and listed as a Ramsar site.

The River Avon is also designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). The designated
sites are in unfavourable condition due to high levels of nutrients. The river is
phosphorus limited which means that any addition either directly or indirectly
should be deemed to have an adverse impact on integrity in accordance with
recent case law.

An appropriate assessment must be undertaken to ensure there is no
reasonable scientific doubt as to the effects of the proposal, in combination
with other developments on this SAC. Natural England advise that all new
residential developments like this one, including those of a smaller scale like
this one, within the catchment should achieve ‘nutrient/phosphate neutrality’. If
they do not, then additional phosphate loads could enter the water
environment causing significant adverse effects on the River Avon SAC.

The applicant has submitted the Natural England approved calculation of
phosphate load from the development into the River Avon SAC and have

secured the required credits from a registered provider to offset the impact of
phosphates into the River Avon SAC.

Page 14 of 24

32



74.

75.

76.

17.

78.

79.

Taking this into account, subject to a Grampian condition requiring the
purchase of the required credits the proposal is considered to successfully
mitigate the harm that would be caused by the increase of phosphate load
from the development into the River Avon SAC and therefore is compliant with
Policy ME1 — Safeguarding Biodiversity and Geodiversity of the Christchurch
and East Dorset Local Plan Core Strategy (2014). A separate Appropriate
Assessment accompanies this.

Natural England have advised that the Council must consider the impact of
residential development on any development within 13.8km of the New Forest
SPA, SAC and Ramsar site, which is the case for this development. The
Council is advised that an Appropriate Assessment is required and mitigation
will be required. The Council has concluded that this can be achieved in the
form of a Grampian condition.

Taking the above into account, subject to the conditions outlined and
appropriate mitigation measures secured by legal agreement, the proposal is
not considered to have a harmful impact on protected sites and is compliant
with policies ME1 and ME2 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan
(2014).

Waste Collection

The proposed development includes an internal waste store situated in the
north eastern corner of the building. The Council’'s waste team raised
concerns regarding the size of the access door to the store not being of
sufficient width. The applicant has amended the scheme to take account of
this change.

The other concern raised by the team relates to the waste store being situated
more than 10m from the kerbside, which is the maximum distance acceptable
for Council kerbside collections. Officers have explored with the applicant
whether an external store could be provided, as is the case with the
neighbouring properties. However, the retention of the three protected trees
on the site mean that the front of the site is constrained. The agent has
advised that a private waste collection service will be provided for the
development. While not the optimum solution, it is accepted that this provides
a pragmatic way forward. In addition, officers are minded that the Titled
Balance set out in paragraph 11d of the NPPF will apply. Given that there is a
solution to the matter, officers consider that the proposal is acceptable in this
regard, subject to a planning condition requiring further a full waste
management plan to be provided. The proposal is considered to be compliant
with policy HE2 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Biodiversity

The applicant has provided a preliminary ecological survey and a bat building
survey of the application site. The survey noted that the site has ladies
tresses orchids (Spiranthes spiralis) present and also had suitable habitat for

Page 15 of 24

33



80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

reptiles. A reptile and botanical walkover of the site was subsequently
undertaken. The survey determined the following:

“The habitat present onsite is suitable for reptiles. But the presence of a cat on
site, will limitthem to the denser vegetation at the perimeters. Therefore, no
further reptile surveys are required. Ladies tresses orchids are likely to be part
of a wider population and may appear spontaneously. Species rich turf from
the front of the property was relocated to the area to be retained at the rear.

A precautionary approach to site clearance in respect to breeding birds,
reptiles, and foraging badgers is recommended to minimise any adverse
impacts on these protected species groups.”

The Council’'s Ecologist has considered the report and concurs with the
findings. Planning conditions will be required to provide bat and swift boxes
and to ensure that vegetation clearance takes place outside of the bird
breeding season (1t March — 315t August inclusive).

Officers consider that subject to imposition of the planning conditions the
proposal will not have a harmful impact on protected species and is compliant
with policy ME1 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Biodiversity Net Gain

Paragraph 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act, under
the heading of ‘duty to conserve biodiversity’ states “every public authority

must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the
proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity.”

The NPPF at chapter 15 ‘conserving and enhancing the natural environment’
sets out government views on minimising the impacts on biodiversity,
providing net gains where possible and contributing to halt the overall decline
in biodiversity. The Local Plan at Policy ME1 — Safeguarding biodiversity and
geodiversity, sets out policy requirements for the protection and where
possible, a net gain in biodiversity.

In addition, a 10% biodiversity net gain (BNG) is required as per the
Environment Act 2021. An ecological impact assessment and Statutory
Biodiversity Metric has been submitted with the application. The metric
demonstrates that 10.27% BNG can be achieved. Habitats of medium
distinctiveness in low/moderate condition are being retained on site, these are
urban trees. Habitats of low distinctiveness, in this case a vegetated garden,
will be created.

As the 10% biodiversity net gain has been demonstrated as being achievable,
through a mix of retention of existing habitats and creation of onsite habitats
the proposal is compliant with the relevant legislation and policy ME1 of the
Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan (2014).

Page 16 of 24

34



86.

87.

88.

89.

Planning Balance / Conclusion

At the heart of the NPPF is the presumption in favour of sustainable
development. NPPF paragraph 11 states that in the case of decision making,
the presumption in favour of sustainable development means that where there
are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out of date, planning permission
should be granted unless policies in the Framework that protect areas of
assets of particular importance provide a clear reason for refusing the
development proposals or any adverse impacts of granting permission would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against
the policies inthe Framework taken as a whole.

Footnote 8 of paragraph 11 provides that inthe case of applications involving

the provision of housing, relevant policies are out of date if the local planning

authority is (i) unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing
sites or (ii) where the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) result is less than 75% of

the housing requirement over the previous three years.

The NPPF (2024) paragraph 78 requires local planning authorities to identify
and update a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide a
minimum of five years’ worth of housing. Paragraph 78 goes on to state that
the supply should be demonstrated against either the housing requirement set
out in adopted strategic policies, or against the local housing need where the
strategic policies are more than five years old. Where the Housing Delivery
Test indicates delivery has fallen below the local planning authority’'s housing
requirement over the previous three years, a buffer should be included as set
out in paragraph 79 of the NPPF.

At 1 April 2024 BCP Council had a housing land supply of 2.1 years against a
5-year housing requirement that includes a 20% buffer. For the purposes of
paragraph 11 of the NPPF, itis therefore appropriate to regard relevant
housing policies as out of date as the local planning authority is unable to
demonstrate a five-year supply of homes. Paragraph 11d (i) states that
planning permission should be granted unless the application of policies in the
NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance provides a strong
reason for refusing the development proposed. Footnote 7 of the NPPF
references the areas or assets of particular importance referred to in the
NPPF and includes: habitats sites (and those sites listed in paragraph 194)
and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific Interest; land designated as
Green Belt, Local Green Space, a National Landscape, a National Park (or
within the Broads Authority) or defined as Heritage Coast; irreplaceable
habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage assets of
archaeological interest referred to in footnote 75); and areas at risk of flooding
or coastal change. In this instance, the site is not situated within these
designations. Therefore, paragraph 11d (ii) should be applied considering
whether any adverse impacts of granting planning permission would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against
the policies in this Framework taken as a whole, having particular regard to

Page 17 of 24

35



90.

key policies for directing development to sustainable locations, making
effective use of land, securing well-designed places and providing affordable
homes, individually or in combination.

In this instance, the scheme would provide 19 additional dwellings that would
contribute towards the Council's housing delivery target. The development
would also provide employment during the construction process which is a
public benefit. However, the proposed development provides no contribution
to affordable housing which weighs against the proposal. Considering the
planning balance, the proposed development is considered overall to provide
benefits in the form of contributing to meeting the 5 year housing land supply
that outweigh the disadvantages of the scheme.

Recommendation

GRANT permission for the reasons as set out in this report subject to the
following conditions and the S106 providing SAMMs Heathlands
payment:

Conditions

1.

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date this permission is granted.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

P007 Block and Location Plans
2392/1B Landscape Proposal

P001-02 Amended Site Plan

P003-01 Amended Ground Floor Plan
P004-01 Amended First Floor Plan
P005-01 Amended Second Floor Plan
P002-01 Amended Basement Floor Plan
P013 Rev A Courtyard Elevations

P011 Rev C East and West Elevations
P008 Rev C North and South Elevations
P006 Rev 2 Roof Plan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a
construction management plan or construction method statement has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The

Page 18 of 24

36



approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the
demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for:
* A construction programme including phasing of works;
» 24 hour emergency contact number;
* Hours of operation;
» Expected number and type of vehicles accessing the site:

o Deliveries, waste, cranes, equipment, plant, works, visitors;

o Size of construction vehicles;

0 The use of a consolidation operation or scheme for the delivery of materials

and goods;

o Phasing of works;
* Means by which a reduction in the number of movements and parking on nearby
streets can be achieved (including measures taken to ensure satisfactory access
and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during
construction):

o Programming;

0 Waste management;

o Construction methodology;

o Shared deliveries;

o Car sharing;

o Travel planning;

o Local workforce;

o Parking facilities for staff and visitors;

o On-site facilities;

o A scheme to encourage the use of public transport and cycling;
* Routes for construction traffic, avoiding weight and size restrictions to reduce
unsuitable traffic on residential roads;
* Locations for loading/unloading, waiting/holding areas and means of
communication for delivery vehicles if space is unavailable within or near the site;
* Locations for storage of plant/waste/construction materials;
» Arrangements for the turning of vehicles, to be within the site unless completely
unavoidable;
» Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;
» Swept paths showing access for the largest vehicles regularly accessing the
site and measures to ensure adequate space is available;
* Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;
* Measures to protect wvulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians); -
Arrangements for temporary facilities for any bus stops or routes;
» Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;
» Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors
and neighbouring residents and businesses.

Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into

development both during the demolition and construction phase of the
development

The detailed drainage scheme submitted with the application shall be
implemented in full and as detailed.

Page 19 of 24

37



Reason: To ensure that proper provision is made for a drainage scheme and to
ensure no changes are made that may undermine the stability of the cliff.

The design of any foundation, excavation and dewatering arrangements (if
required) for both the temporary and permanent case, shall assess the potential
for induced settlements and any adverse impacts on global stability in
consideration of the adjacent built structures, services and Sea CIiff.

Accordingly full calculations demonstrating that i) an adequate factor of safety
for global stability will be maintained and ii) predicted settlements will be within
tolerable limits, such that no adverse impacts will result from the proposed
structure(s) inrelation to ground stability. Such calculations shall be submitted to
BCP for consideration prior to the commencement of groundworks.

Reason: To ensure the development does not result in any ground instability, in
accordance with the Christchurch Local Plan 2014

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied unless the
visibility splay areas as shown on approved plans have first been cleared and
excavated to a level not exceeding 0.6 metres above the relative level of the
adjacent highway. The visibility splay areas shall at all times thereafter be
retained at that level, kept free from all obstructions and maintained in a way that
ensures that they provide clear visibility to and from the highway and any access
associated with the visibility splays.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Before the development is occupied or utilised the cycle parking facilities,
including the cycle lifts shown on the hereby approved plans must have been
constructed. Thereafter, these must be maintained, kept free from obstruction
and available for the purposes specified at all times.

Reason: To ensure the proper construction of the parking facilities and to
encourage the use of sustainable transport modes.

Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted, the proposed access,
parking and turning areas shall be constructed in a bound material and arranged
in accordance with approved plans and permanently retained and kept available
for its intended purpose, at all times. In addition, the approved car lifts shall be
installed in full and maintained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the proper and appropriate development of the site and to

ensure that highway safety is not adversely impacted upon in accordance with
Policy KS12 of the East Dorset and Christchurch adopted Local Plan 2002.

Page 20 of 24

38



10.

11.

12.

Before the development is occupied or utilised, any areas of redundant existing
highway vehicular crossing must be expunged and reinstated to a specification
to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper and appropriate reinstatement of the adjacent
highway.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied] unless a Refuse
Management Plan have first been be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority that shall in particular include:

[(@) Details of the private contractor who will intiallly be responsible for the
collection of household waste from the development including how that waste
will be collected, taken away and how frequently;

(b) Details of any management company to be set up that will operate such
arrangements; and

(c) Measures to secure the on-going future private collection of all household
waste from the development including arrangements for the collection of waste
if no private contractor is available at any time in the future (for example
arrangements that will secure the positioning of binson the day of collection in a
location that is considered suitably accessible).

The approved Refuse Management Plan shall be accorded with at all times. No
bins shall be stored in the open or at any collection point shown on any of any
approved plans relating to the development hereby permitted apart from on the
day of collection.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development includes a long-term
management plan for the collection of refuse in the interests of visual and
residential amenities.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied unless all the
biodiversity measures identified in approved document Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal and Bat Building Survey dated 09/01/2023 have first been fully
provided as approved and thereafter those measures shall at all times be
retained and also managed and maintained in accordance with the details in the
approved document.

Reason: In order to ensure the required biodiversity measures are provided.
No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced, including any
site clearance, the digging of any trenches and the bringing on to the application

site of any equipment, materials and machinery for use in connection with the
implementation of the development, unless details of:

Page 21 of 24

39



13.

14.

(@) The location, size and materials of all barriers and ground protection
measures that will be provided for trees that are to be retained on site together
with the location of all such retained trees; and

(b) A timetable for the provision of the specified measures, all in accordance with
BS5837:2012 "Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction -
Recommendations” (or an equivalent British Standard if replaced) have first been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority ("the
Approved Tree Protection Measures"). The development shall only carried out in
accordance with the Approved Tree Protection Measures and all the approved
barriers and measures shall be retained until both the development has been
completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials relating to the
construction of the development has been removed from the site, unless an
alternative time is provided for in the approved details.

Until such time as the Approved Tree Protection Measures have all been
removed, nothing shall be stored or placed in any area secured by any part of
the Tree Protection Measures nor shall the ground levels within those areas be
altered or any excavation made without the written consent of the local planning
authority.

Reason: To ensure that retained trees and their rooting environments are
afforded adequate physical protection and this is a pre-commencement condition
to prevent any harm being caused to those trees that might result from any other
work being carried out in relation to the development.

The development hereby permitted shall only be constructed of materials the
details of which are set out on the application form and in approved plans.

Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the locality.

No development shall commence unless proposals for the mitigation or offsetting
of the impact of phosphorus arising from the development on the River Avon
Special Area of Conservation (SAC), including mechanisms to secure the timely
implementation of the proposed approach, have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such proposals must: (a) Provide for
mitigation which achieves a phosphorous neutral impact from the development;
and (b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to be
secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for the ongoing
monitoring of any such proposals which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures. The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not increase the phosphate load

on the River Avon SAC, which has been demonstrated to cause harm to the
SAC.

Page 22 of 24

40



15.

16.

17.

Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings herby approved, a detailed strategy
for the mitigation of the adverse effects arising from the development on the New
Forest SAC, New Forest SPA and New Forest Ramsar site shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The strategy as approved
shall be carried out before any residential unit hereby permitted is first occupied.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not lead to increased recreational
pressure and associated adverse effects on New Forest SAC, New Forest SPA
and New Forest Ramsar site.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be constructed above damp
proof course level unless full details of obscure glazed screens of at least 1.8
metres in height to be erected along the sides of all the balconies as marked on
the approved plans have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. No part of the balconies shall be used unless the screen
has been erected in accordance with the approved details and the screen shall
thereafter at all times be retained as such.

Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of adjoining residential properties.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be constructed above damp
proof course level unless details of the gates to the courtyard and also gates and
boundary treatment separating the rear garden from the front agreed. Details as
to the positions, designs, materials and types of gates and boundary treatment
to be provided in respect of the development shall first be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. No part of the development
shall be occupied unless the gates and boundary treatment have been fully
provided in accordance with the approved details and the approved gates and
boundary treatment shall at all times thereafter be retained.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and security.

Informatives

1.

The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 is that planning permission granted for the development of land in
England is deemed to have been granted subject to the condition ("the
biodiversity gain condition™) that development may not begin unless:

(a) A Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and
(b) the planning authority has approved the plan. The planning authority, for the
purposes of determining whether to approve a Biodiversity Gain Plan if one is

required in respect of this permission would be Bournemouth, Christchurch and
Poole Council.

Page 23 of 24

41



There are statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that
the biodiversity gain condition does not always apply. These are listed in
paragraph 17 of Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and
the Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Exemptions) Regulations 2024.

2. The applicant needs to be aware that the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
will be applied to this development. The Council will shortly be issuing a CIL
Liability Notice following the grant of this permission which will provide
information on the applicant’s obligations.

3.  This grant of permission is to be read in conjunction with the Legal Agreement
dated 28th May 2025 entered into between BCP Council and Burry & Knight Ltd.

Background Documents:

Documents uploaded to that part of the Council's website that is publicly
accessible and specifically relates to the application the subject of this report
including all related consultation responses, representations and documents
submitted by the applicant in respect of the application.

Notes.

This excludes all documents which are considered to contain exempt
information for the purposes of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972.
Reference to published works is not included.

Page 24 of 24

42



- oy vsoer Tl R =T
XOT 9ds ‘2314sdiiel S3pUGAUIpIOS ‘PECY NG Uiohs; ‘SOIpIS F5NOUSSED 47 * e | Mo e enstheuferd vzjsojet+
mquEQO_w>wD WC\_JQOI £00d Ha
saoe UE|d UOIIBIOT PUB UB|400|g  peoy a4IPULeYM EE-TE ©ONBMa A paxoaud
M E\)/ﬁﬁ\\ﬁ\\; irdw“.—‘— O—Lm :Suimesq Quaip/palord |evd U >>“W_mummmm vz, \m“m “MM Ajereipowul 19e)Yoay 8y) 0] pepodal 8q PINOYS SUDISSIWO Jo/pue SeouedaIosip AUE PUB LONINJISUOD O} Joud B)IS-Uo Pexdeyd 8q PNoYS SUOISUBWIP 1o Bumes |y ”
U : NOILYIITdd¥ ONINNY1d Lvoze - :
110y panss| ‘0N P3loid :Ag umeiq
(TwSz'££5E) S910E 6EGR'0 B3I DS 0SZT'T 8IS
005: 2[e3s e —
wg/ 0s 14 0

|

H10 ubIH

243NONAVHM

avod




This page is intentionally left blank

44



XDT 945 ‘241ysdiey 23pugduig K !
Aipabapid e unos sk SO SHOIRDLE
. N o vroz/9o/ct |
7 AN IO O st I R | E
) VC Nu/.“_.c _v_m Sumerq IPUIRYM €€-TE PG ool [ h
- | . = g T
. - e e L o 2n papusE 3101 0 1 s VLRI 990 11 42T o
i s
: V¥I1dd¥ ONINNV1d R |
0GC:T 3/edS e =
P!
oiponss | oneder Aguneg
E q
Ajoreipewil 1981y
Il PeNYRIY eu) o) papodes 8q
pInoys suoissiwo Jo/pug serouedaiosip Aue pue uor:
i 1oN15U0D 0} Joud BYIs-UD
1d 6YS-U0 Po¥9UO 0Q PINOYS SOISUOW
1P no Bumes Iy

FERES]

(s:202)

5300V
NvilS303d

wow
secuRTY
GATE

THYALMNOD
JONVAINI

secuRE
TRV L0
Block®

secuRE
entry L0BBY!
BLocKA

g0V

s ONDRYE ,l/
/ /,

Q3NIY13y 39 0.

500 s
N —
e ovghe pauretel 94 O __ﬁmcgm bl

uvo \

/
QG 3AAONSYHN

/

(4N

2430mm

\l

Rendered Concrete Wa

all
o}mm

onderd W
geomm 1o 12

o

ouey yUUELR WIS

ALk / pl
= o v»;%ﬂo«.,ﬂ%ﬁmze
/ /

N
avou mw%mz%x;

o/

\\
—

‘uonewl.
Jelwuloul Jayuny oy ubisaq adeospueT 0} Jo;
JEN]

80UB} PJBOQ BSOJO W
ch& pJeoq 8soo EE%%M FF _.__ - 5
U8} pJeoq 9SO WWQOZ|L © .o
mocwmo:wu Uil uleyd wwoos 4 .m__
wo:wh pJeoq esojo wwooll 3-d
e } PJBOQ 9S0J0 WWQQSZ d -
) %coo paJapual WWogLZ 9 -o
mm:m>Eoow_\ 0} WwQ9g wou} @
uen JybioH "|lem passpusy g -V

uoijejaban
/ s9a13 pasodoid maN

Vvdy pue vwc_ﬁm:\:\, ~\

aq 0} seay) Bunsixg, | © )y

panowsal
aq 0} seay} buisixg

AN AYVANNOG
aN3aoIa1




This page is intentionally left blank

46



5 T — sz0z107z W s2021072 Wi | o [mea | | w0 [ .
oy peou it owg shgpopau wwq dguwen .
e oNSmg eyt | P [wea |
wo oot o wg v € 3 0
s1091yoIR ot wogma |2 B O~ ™ ™
1oz anos 3 yuioN pasodosd .
: s
ONINNYTd
a0y panssy saion
uoneas| yInog pasodoid
R I
oy by 1
2
e =
s
e P
i i
i
uoneas|g yuoN pesodoig
# 4
s “ 5
= -
g & = ,
R =t = o N
= 3
X !
“ iy :
leﬁ. P
EA7




This page is intentionally left blank

48



LI

Proposed West Elevation

49

Proposed East Elevation

htSPACL

architects

Brig

s g O75508

© spsone
Segnsone

2
» ®
ggisfa“,
ER3F|EcE
o
z
H oz
| 8 gE
= &
] 2
s, |.58
s |.3E [Es¢
g f&a |Em2
I'TER ]
u=ié
gé
2
i
§ 58
1
i g
I
igf ig
“}i -
i "
ve< §|8F
i
i
H
4
H
T
E
5
<
3 8
3
3
&
ol




This page is intentionally left blank

50



Proposed East Elevation

51

i 1!|||
I%"‘I |5| il
=,|, il
l'l i':'
| | I“ {l

i
i
i '|,|,|{ i

|I|| [
,l,!,l,n

G
|'§|'|"}|{ it
':'l}l '1' ':“m!:g
|'| 'l'l'l'l}i}l}l'l"{l'
it |}=}|‘|‘l'=’|i|'|'g‘
l.l 'l' ';'l'l ':'1'
it il i

1‘|,|'!‘|'|'|'r|

il e
iR
|l Il |l I,I I.H
i u||,||
fHitHt

b
|||'l il
il il

U

“!H “l“l “l

,4}:{1’ 'l}an‘l‘ x{l

fi W il
i

I
,|||- mn: '=
i I|,|l| it I
L
,|'|'u'|,|' |'|,|‘| ’|;|'|'|'
I!i I =|='i|l|l|l,lll|=l HiH

Proposed West Elevation

Issued for:

PLANNING

Project No
22047
Scale:

Drawing;

Bright

architects

Proposed Courtyard Elevations

@A2

<

1:100
wg No:

g

Road

Hoburne Developments

181224

Date.

Checked By:
MC

Date:
18.12.24

Drawn By:

| o | | FM

e

Notes:

5m

Scale 1:100




This page is intentionally left blank

52



1
XOT 5ds "241usdieh 33pUG3uIp03 ‘PO YN0 UIaA3 'SOIpRIS S5NOUSSe L7

TOVeIsbug

ue|d Joo|4

Bumeq

syuawdojanag auingoH
juswWasey  peoy ayljouIBYM EE-TE

NOILVOI1ddV SNINNV1d

. +202/90/8T

TO A2y :33eQ

2Q0d Ha

{ON 3MQ :Ag paydayd

auayp/pafoid |ev® 00T:T ¥202/90/81
i9|eas 21eQ

Ly0TT o8N

110y panss| ‘0N P8foid :Ag umeiq

|
Mo oaw
Ha oaw

N

] oo [

‘nss Meunwiad 52/50/81 00
POPPE v PUS T $/1T/ST 1O

00¢:T 3[83S

e e

wot 8 9 14 4

AjoveipowLL 199Uy OU) 0] Paviodes 6q PINOYS SUDISSILIO J0/pUE SeUEBISID AUE PUE LOTINISUOD O] Joud BIIS-UO PEXIED 07 PINOYS SUOISUBLLID 1N0 BUMeS [y
Jopedsu panoaddy Ue 10 [o4u05 Buiping Awouiny 2007 woy [eaoidde pUE LOREIINSUOD o} joalans sesodoid

SieIpenU00-qns pue sso1ddns Ui uaLIdo[EASP UBISAP JouLN] O 196ans 28 pu Ajuo Sesodind uBjuI UBISBP 10} BJE UMOUS SIIEIBD UL

Ing pue BuluLIElg 0} 1o3lqns ase sBume:p Iy

“JuasuOo [oU0D

0

s3j0N

(13A3] 400]} punou9) sadeds SIONSIA {7
saoeds 491002s Alljiqow Z
nac

(puess pjatyays) saoeds zy

0S

|ana) Jooyy
punousie

sauanlsp o1 sd T
Alpuaiiy pajqesip sd T
siopsin 0y sd g

*sd T = syuswede paqg € 01 sdz

'sd 7T = sjuswiede paq z 03 sdT
'sd T =sjuswyede paq T 03 sdt
papinoud g€

\
AN

>

EEEEEES
oo annoso
By

aLss3007

:s9oeds 9[oAdg

saoeds Supjied

L

s

(hQ0) spoiuen
uBsaq apko

(AQ0) spoen
uBsaq apko

o3eds 1910095 Ayigow 7
AG0T
(15°0 plowaus) s 29)

[ SO S SR E—
04 SaS

SS3MO3
PReNEBNENE]

r

o4 —Ivzod — | %04 — V604

3

53




This page is intentionally left blank

54



o

3 vzoz/so/st |1 T 00C-T 3[e5
10 "oy “1eq | Ha e
XD 08 S shues ‘SDUADUBIo3 Beox o3 sk 0P SO LE sueld 4004 syuawido|anag auINgoH 004 wa [ popunueair e sy Poppe U e/ TEST 10 E
punois  peoy ayIPUIRBYM EE-TE ©ONBMa  Ag payeyd wot 8 9 14 [4 0
. . . Aje1BIpBWLUI 100N1YDIY BU) 0} peLiodal 8 PINOUS SUOISSILIO J0/pUE S810UBdeIOSID AUE PUE LOONIISUOD 0] Joud BJIS-UO PaYIeYo Bq PINOYS SUOISUBWIP 1NC Bumes iy e
:Sumelq aualp/pafold |ev® 00Z:T ¥202/90/81 Jojadsu] parouddy Ue 10 [o5uog Buipping AlLoUINY (2307 Wy [eAcidde pUE UONEYNSUCD o) foalans Sjesodold
:3|eas :21eq sia10821U09-gns pue ssayddns yim Juswdojerep UBISap JayN] 0} 199[aNs aJ8 PUE Ajuo sasodand JusIUI UBISSP J0j BIE UMOUS SIIEIOD BUL e
NOILYDITddV ONINNY1d 19022 San “JUBsUOD 04u0D BuIp|Ng pue BuluUEld 0 109(anS 28 SBUMEIP 1Y »
1104 panss| :oN 398l01gd :Ag umeiq :s310N
/ $$300V $5300V
Vo zim.wwomﬁn_mn_ $8300V
-
g ‘ o e
feentizo i O Ry
L IJ

| I I

| [ |

Q3NIVL3y 38 OL , 1 |

2L |

I Il |

[ | o ——

| [IRSRRRENR 7y IR —

|2l , =l ,

s30vds | (I |

SNV | I |

QaNIV13d 39 0L | I |

1L
N3Q¥YO a3sivy ﬁ | = |
/ TIVM ¥3d331S | LN | L o |

6¢

oepim
N3IAY¥YO g3V / W00z N3IQHVO d3sivy

I TIVM ¥3d33TS

(s1202) 1417 ¥vVO

T
4
Q¥VALENOD
JONVYLNT
v 0078
ABHOT ABINT
3uno3s
850078
ABHOT AMINZ
e

N
ALRNo3s

Ma

Ge

3NITLNO INIW3SvE

55




This page is intentionally left blank

56



YO 84S ‘Sausdue ‘93puadupios Peoy nod uiaki3 S0IpvS SEnolssels L7

sjuawdojanaq auIngoH
1544 peoy ayjouleyM £€-T€

3ual/13f0ld

TOVeIsubug

NOILVII1ddV ONINNV1d

1104 panss|

TO ey
¥Q0d
:oNEMa
V@ 00T:T
=3

L¥0TT
‘0N pafold

¥202/90/81
:33eq

Ha
:Ag paypoayd
¥202/90/81

:a3eq

S8
:Ag umelg

B |
Mo oaw
Ha oaw

B

= T

00¢:T 3|8d3S

[ —

wot 8 9 14 [4 o]

AjoleIpoWLLL 1989y OU) 0] PBYIOdes B3] PINOYS SUOISSILUIO JO/UE SAIDUEGBISIP AUE PUE UOOIUISUOD 0] J0Ud BIS-UO PEYDBYD ] PINOYS SUOISUBLIP 110 BUNeS [y »
Jojoadsu] panoiddy ue 10 [04uog Buipjng Auoyiny 12507 woy [eroidde pue uoeINSUCD 0 oakans slesodold

qns pue sioyddns ym UBISap JouLN) 0 18IGns aJe pue Ajuo sesodind JuBlul UBISEP o) e UMOUS SIEISP BUL  +

JU9SU0D (010D BUIPIING PUE BulLUEld 0 100(ns ole SBUWEIp Il o

1s330N

7

I

57

@

/
’
/

’
’
/

¢
’
/

\

~J

\

N,

il




This page is intentionally left blank

58



¥202/90/8T

00¢:T 3|eds
TO ey :a1eQ

e sex e, B aBupios peoy oo e Sope e e i3 Ue|d JoOl4  syuswdojanaq auinqoH 500d a E
PUOI3S  peoy ayIPUIBYM EE-TE ©ONBMd  :Ag payeyd wot 8 9 14 4 0
. . ) Apeieipaww syo:y 8U 0] papiodal 8g PINOYS SUOISSIWO JO/pUE saUEdaX 15U0 0} Jolid BYS-UO PEXYOBLD B PINOYS SUOISUBWIP IN0 BUMBS [IY  »
Buimeiq auad/peloid fev® QOTT - vZ0z/90/8T padsul panciicy us oUIny 1550 Lo (oA, PUB UOEINSUCS O palans SfEsodold
- — <& c 13je0g :a1eq S19108AU09-GNS pUE s1BIIddNS YW JuaLdojerap UBISEP JaLuny fANS 942 PUE AJUO S9S0CING UBIUI UBISSP JO) I UMOUS SIBIOP OUL =
NOILVII1ddV ONINNV1d 14022 Sam “JUBSU03 0100 BUIPINg PUE BUIUUELd 01 108[ans aJe SBUMEID Iy »
sogpenss) | oNwelosd  :Agumeig 530N

o |

S

TET—71

— =~ — — —

il

()

59

[

=

= /
\\
% “\ —or /
g [ 4
e L T— d
¥
! 4
4
-0 /

sy




This page is intentionally left blank

60



= e L L I N B o e DR RIS
N 20 ey jeq |0 o anss e 175051 00
YOT SdS o591 S3puaipIo ‘Do LRC Uisksy SOpnis SnOUSSHD {Z 3INpay3s UOREPOWOY  syuawdojanag AUINGoH wa o poppe s suswpus ooy 2TTSZ 10 &
2 mnn_ kg poyp mxnu_ oo By 001§ o Py STTOEE 0
spayoR PUE URI4JOOY  peoy ayipuIeYM ge-Te | _ONING Hgpope N wor 0§ 9 ¥ 7 0
3 . . . N Aj@reipawwl 198NY21y 8y) 0] pepodas 8q PINOYS SUOISSIWO Jo/pue seouedaIosip AUE PUE LONINJISUCD O} J0ud B)IS-UO PEXIBYD 87 PINOYS SUOISUBWIP N0 Bumes [y«
. P\, P :Buimesq auayp/pafoid |ev® 00T:T STT0ET Jopadsu] panouddy L Jo [oxuog Buipjing Aluouiny (2007 Wy [eAcidde puE UoNEYNSUCD 0] 1oalans sjesodold
' . H. —L 3eds #3eq $1010821U00-qnS pUE S11ddNS Y UBWO|aASP UBISBP JoULIN] Ol 1991GNS 8.8 PUE AJuo Sas0dind UaIu UBISBP JO B8 UMOUS SIEISP 8UL o
| W _ L) . Z o _I_I<U _1_&&< MU Z _ Z Z<l_& NqONN 29N JUBSUOD [o5jUOD Ing pue Buluueld 0} 10algns ase sBumesp |Iy .
1104 panss| ‘0N 3foid :Ag umeiq :sajoN
< | =>
<& | =
—
<= | = NnEEIA0
i
N <= =
\,
N, I 1T 10T
\ — b beeeed beed ead |
o o I s I o 4
4
\\
<~ o o o |
N, N I S N S P
(1an8] Joo|) punoln) sededs SIONISIA {7 AN "
saoeds 4230095 Ajljiqow ¢ S 4 X
-
nase N 3
(puess pauyays) saoeds g N " 7
\,
0s :s92eds ajpAaig ™, /
\
AN 7 ; = /
sauaAlap o1 sd T /, ’

Alpuaiiy pajqesip sd
SI0}SIA 0} sd 1

*sd T = syuswilede paq € 03 sdz
'sd TT = sjuswiiede paq z 031 sdT
'sd T =sjuswyiede paq T 01 sdt

papinoud €€

(zwsz'£L5°E) s9498 6E88'0

CWO00'€0C 03 ZWZ6°00T

TWST'Z6 01 TW/9'E8

cwo6'c9

:s20eds Supyled

‘eale als
S)IUN *OUET

juswpede 49g€ -ou/

juswpede dygz ‘OuTT

juswyede 4zgT -out

31NAd3IHIS NOILYAOWINODJJV

UL




This page is intentionally left blank

62



SHLYIDOSSY dHdldLYVYd —_———

dar/cesc
on Bunesy
ar 20T A 1 v @ 00z/1
‘gumeq g ams
a
s
STVSOdOYd HdVOSANV'T
a1 S

ALTTOHODIH "AVOY HAITONYMVHM €€71¢

ooforg

/ A I A
i

! § 19[aos HprquIEy TprTHOly o
1ap ¢ amSm ° §I[ES SFPRQUIED TPITUOIN ON 0F

"ALTSINIWNdOTIAIA ANYMNEOH

F
Graon

3

ot | o | e

Swamber N 107 papPE S0, v

e posiabd saL ] pateathod {1 ao3] M

rrpd woSdorqdo oN |
€ SURqLE AQE ON bT

€ P109PTH,

1
081 Bunsy

S6-06 325t

panowai aq o1 dot

Sumuado pur Sud

o

Ji::8

S PRI W00 X 0L X 05 B
e odol 09 =
w0 paseq Bumery 0 / % Wn -
a loxrz0y, umzmpuose
O SISVE THL SV 0351 38 LON AINOHS ANV AINO FA1N9 V3V STZIS MANIVINGD G
- Qd LOA(E 98 TIA A3 LVOIANT SIHOTH 3H1 O1 d411ddNS LON SINV1d 0 == o
dosp. =
P B EAp——— —. _==—= d 10
w sBuoeds e poreidaq o) w oz 4 =

Acfe 050 [P, 038
%l o Fpae e

S =
1i009) SITTML YHEWLL ===

aavTiog IHOITHaWIL [ @ ]

(op wiogeT x

(pues uapIon 0T X 012 0\ weg uoed S[EYsit) ONIAVA ANOLS o]
ONDIDIA TLSOAN0D [ ]
soNIadiHo F1vis [L000] 8
g : e pmers

(eqn 200103) TOAT TVITN HIIA TIAVED ANNOE fo e 5] § [ {
10]03 1P SISO WOPULT “CI0TY %
“N) ONIAVA OO TTAVINEAD TLTIONOD  [FFTE]
TOSHXOCH ‘HOXES S[EYSEN) ONIAVA GVIS TLTMONOD  [[TT11]

11V ANOLS HOIH
SONITIVL TVIIN He

P —
INV1d NIWIDEAS/ INTOOV _uauu_

(210N 229) INVId ONITWNITY [F% |
SHMHS VINTWYNYO [ ]

A3UL SNOMFINOD/SNONAIDA, @ A T

STUNLVE IS0

IHOWIH 10dS

(pappe Sutdos ouow aau pue pasomar

ones doy paropuat (iay) CEANIVIAM 11VA ANOLS ONILLSIXE [——
MO TVII90T00d

HIIA IONVAMODOV NI GENIVIIY SYIV ANvIssvao [ ]
(sprom 2om pue tonsa101d Jo speop

HOQEy o1 130%Y) QANIVIAY 4 OL AL [~ ]

oTpa:

107 odayy

¢



This page is intentionally left blank

64



T o= cwsudopag oy | SOC0E | s o Tome | —
0T 9ds ‘i pugBpIos s 8004 peoy EE-TE
g AAEETE [ ]
wo oozt by
Ss)o8yyale a5 o

Hr_@_\_m i

3u3ds 333u35 pasodoid
Sumeig

ONINNYTd

10y panss|

wot 8 9 v

o1 paviodas ag

soud
Joradsul panoiddy ue 10 104G BUPIING Auioany [€301 wos [eAosdde pue uonEns:
f ¥

w

1103 01 a(qns siesodosg

3

Joau0) Buipimng

R

2U99g 199418 pasodoid

65

sa0n




This page is intentionally left blank

66



	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	5 Public Issues
	PLANNING COMMITTEE - PROTOCOL FOR SPEAKING / STATEMENTS AT PLANNING COMMITTEE
	1. Introduction
	2. Order of presentation of an application
	3. Guidance relating to the application of this protocol
	4. Electronic facilities relating to Planning Committee
	4.1. All electronic broadcasting and recording of a Planning Committee meeting by the Council and the provision of an opportunity to speak remotely at such a meeting is dependent upon such matters being accessible, operational and useable during the m...

	5. Attending in person at a Planning Committee meeting / wholly virtual meetings
	5.1. Unless otherwise stated on the Council’s website and/or the agenda Planning Committee will be held as a physical (in person) meeting. A Planning Committee meeting will only be held as a wholly virtual meeting during such time as a decision has be...

	6. Provisions for speaking at Planning Committee (whether in person or remotely)
	6.1. Any applicant, objector or supporter who wishes to speak at a Planning Committee meeting must register a request to speak in writing with Democratic Services at democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  by 10.00 am of the working day before the meet...
	6.2. A person registering a request to speak must:
	6.3. There will be a maximum combined time of five minutes allowed for any person(s) objecting to an application to speak.  A further combined five minute maximum will also be allowed for any supporter(s).  Up to two people may speak during each of th...
	6.4. If more than two people seek to register a wish to speak for either side, an officer from Democratic Services may ask those seeking the opportunity to speak to appoint up to two representatives to address the Planning Committee.  In the absence o...
	6.5. A person registered to speak may appoint a different person to speak on their behalf.  The person registered to speak should normally notify Democratic Services of this appointment prior to the time that is made available to speak on the applicat...
	6.6. A person may at any time withdraw their request to speak by notifying Democratic Services by email or in person on the day of that meeting.  However, where such a withdrawal is made after the deadline date for receipt of requests then the availab...
	6.7. During consideration of a planning application at a Planning Committee meeting, no question should be put or comment made to any councillor sitting on the Planning Committee by any applicant, objector or supporter whether as part of a speech or o...

	7. Questions to person speaking under this protocol
	7.1. Questions will not normally be asked of any person who has been given the opportunity to speak for the purpose of this Protocol.  However, the Chair at their absolute discretion may raise points of clarification.

	8. Speaking as a ward councillor or other BCP councillor (whether in person or remotely)
	8.1. Any ward councillor shall usually be afforded an opportunity to speak on an application at the Planning Committee meeting at which it is considered.  Every ward councillor who is given the opportunity to speak will have up to five minutes each.
	8.2. At the discretion of the Chair, any other councillor of BCP Council not sitting as a voting member of the Planning Committee may also be given the opportunity to speak on an application being considered at Planning Committee.  Every such councill...
	8.3. Any member of the Planning Committee who has exercised their call in powers to bring an application to the Planning Committee for decision should not vote on that item but subject to any requirements of the Member Code of Conduct, may have or, at...

	9. Speaking as a Parish or Town Council representative (whether in person or remotely)
	9.1. A Parish or Town Council representative who wishes to speak as a representative of that Parish or Town Council must register as an objector or supporter and the same provisions for speaking as apply to any other objector or supporter applies to t...

	10. Content of speeches (whether in person or remotely) and use of supporting material
	10.1. Speaking must be done in the form of an oral representation.  This should only refer to planning related issues as these are the only matters the Planning Committee can consider when making decisions on planning applications.  Speakers should no...
	10.2. A speaker who wishes to provide or rely on any photograph, illustration or other visual material when speaking (in person or remotely) must submit this to Democratic Services by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. All such material must...
	10.3. The ability to display material on screen is wholly dependent upon the availability and operation of suitable electronic equipment at the time of the Planning Committee meeting and cannot be guaranteed.  Every person making a speech should there...

	11. Remote speaking at Planning Committee
	11.1. In circumstances where the Council has put in place electronic facilities which enable a member of the public to be able to speak remotely to a Planning Committee meeting, a person may request the opportunity to speak remotely via those electron...
	11.2. The opportunity to speak remotely is undertaken at a person’s own risk on the understanding that should any technical issues affect their ability to participate remotely the meeting may still proceed to hear the item on which they wish to speak ...
	11.3. A person attending to speak remotely may at any time be required by the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer to leave any electronic facility that may be provided.

	12. Non-attendance / inability to be heard at Planning Committee
	12.1. It is solely the responsibility of a person who has been given an opportunity to speak on an application at a Planning Committee meeting (whether in person or remotely) to ensure that they are present for that meeting at the time when an opportu...
	12.2. A failure / inability by any person to attend and speak in person or remotely at a Planning Committee meeting at the time made available for that person to speak on an application will normally be deemed a withdrawal of their wish to speak on th...
	12.3. This protocol includes provisions enabling the opportunity to provide a statement as an alternative to speaking in person / as a default option in the event of a person being unable to speak at the appropriate meeting time.

	13. Submission of statement as an alternative to speaking / for use in default
	13.1. A person (including a councillor of BCP Council) who has registered to speak, may submit a statement to be read out on their behalf as an alternative to speaking at a Planning Committee meeting (whether in person or remotely).
	13.2. Further, any person speaking on an application at Planning Committee may, at their discretion, additionally submit a statement which can be read out as provided for in this protocol in the event of not being able to attend and speak in person or...

	14. Provisions relating to a statement
	15. Assessment of information / documentation / statement
	15.1. BCP Council reserves the right to check any statement and any information / documentation (including any photograph, illustration or other visual material) provided to it for use at a Planning Committee meeting and to prevent the use of such inf...

	16. Guidance on what amounts to a material planning consideration
	16.1. As at the date of adoption of this protocol, the National Planning Portal provides the following guidance on material planning considerations:

	Note
	For the purpose of this protocol:
	(a) reference to the “Chair” means the Chair of Planning Committee and shall include the Vice Chair of Planning Committee if the Chair is at any time unavailable or absent and the person presiding at the meeting of a Planning Committee at any time tha...
	(b) reference to the Head of Planning includes any officer nominated by them for the purposes of this protocol and if at any time the Head of Planning in unavailable, absent or the post is vacant / ceases to exist, then the Development Management Mana...
	(c) reference to ‘ward councillor’ means a councillor in whose ward the application being considered at a meeting of Planning Committee is situated in whole or part and who is not a voting member of the Planning Committee in respect of the application...
	(d) a “wholly virtual meeting” is a Planning Committee meeting where no one including officers and councillors physically attend the meeting; however, a meeting will not be held as a “wholly virtual meeting” unless legislation permits



	7 31-33 Wharncliffe Road, Christchurch, BH23 5DB
	1. Block and Location Plan
	2. Site Plan
	3. North and South elevations
	4. East and West Elevations
	5. Courtyard Elevations
	6. Basement Floor Plan
	7. Ground Floor Plans
	8. First Floor Plan
	9. Second Floor Plan
	10. Roof Plan
	11. Landscape Proposal
	12. Street Scene


